UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

¢
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA i INDICTMENT
Y . :
DOUG WHITMAN,
Defendant.
. e e e e e e e e - - - X
COUNT ONE

(Conspiracy to Commit Securities Fraud)
The Grand Jury charges:

Relevant Entities and Individuals

1. At all times relévant.to this.Indictment, Whitman
Capital, LLC (“*Whitman Capital”) éperated as an investment
.advisory firm iocated in California,focusiné on technology
companies. Whitman Capital managed Whitman Partners, L.P.
(“WhitmankPartners”), a pfivgté partnership that invested in the
securities of various teéhndidgy companieg.

2. At all times relevaht to this‘iﬁdictment, DOUG
WHITMAN, the defendant, served as the President of Whitman
Capital and the principal portfolio manager of Whitman Partners.

3. At all times‘relevanE.tébthis?Indictment, Karl
Motey (“Motey”) worked as'a résearch analet‘aha provided

services to hedge fund clients and others in the investment




community.

The Insidér Trading Scheme:.

4. From at 1east‘in or about 2007 through in or about
2009, DOUG WHiTMAN, the deferidant; Karl Motey, and others known
and unknown, particiﬁated”in'a scheme to defraud by disclosing
material, nonpublic information (“Inside Information”) and/or
exécuting securities transactions béseéion Inside Information
pertaining to publicly traded;éompéhies, inclﬁding Marvell
Technology Group, Ltd. (“Marvell”), a public company that trades
on the Nasdag Stock Market.

5. More specifically, Karl Mbtey obtained earnings,
revenue, and/or other materid fiﬁancialﬂéndfbusiness information
(*“Marvell Inside Information”f from oné or ‘more individuals not
named as defendants herefn who worked as employees at Marvell

(*Marvell Inside Séufces")f 'The Marvell Inside Sources disclosed
Marvell Inside Informatién to Motey infviolation of their duties
of trust and confidence that they owedzfo Marvell and Marvell
shareholders and for pefsoﬁaltﬁéﬁéfit. ‘

6. After obtaining the Marvell.Inside Information
from the Marvell Inside Sources, Motey provided the Marvell
Inside Information to DOUG WHITMAN;‘the defendant, and others.
WHITMAN knew that the Maf%eli‘InEfdé InfSimation that Motey

provided to him was obtained in violation of 8uties of trust and
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confidence that the Marvell Inside Sources owed to Marvell and
Marvell shareholders.

7. After receivihg théiMarvell Ingide Information
from Motey, DOUG WHITMAN,‘thé defendant,ééaﬁséd securities
transactions to be executed baséd, at least iﬁ part, on the
Marvell Inside Ihformation.

8. In exéhange‘for the Marvell Inside Information
provided by Motey, DOUG WHITMAN, the defendant, caused Whitman
Capital and/or Whitman Partne:s to pay Motey through soft dollar
payments. o

The Conspiracy

9. From at least in or about 2007 through in or about

2009, in the Southern District of!Néw York énd elsewhere, DOUG
; i ' v,

WHITMAN, the defendant,'and7étﬁéfs Eannqénd ﬁnknown, willfully
and knowingly, did combine, coﬂspiré, confédefate and agree.
together and with eaéh otherjto.cémmit offenses against the
United Stétes, to wit,'sécﬁfities fraud, in violation of Title
15, United States Code, Secﬁions‘78j(b}A& 78ff, and Title 17,
Code of Federal Regulations,'séction 240.10b-53

10. It was a part agd bbject of ‘the conspiracy that
DOUG WHITMAN, the defendant, and others known and unknown,

willfully and knowingly, directly and indirectly, by the use of

the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, and of
i L . .
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the mails, and of facilitieslof national securities exchanges,
woﬁld and did use and employ, in cohneéﬁioniwith,the purchase‘and
sale of securities,.manipuiat£Ve"and deceétivé'devices and
contrivances in violation of Title 17, Code of Federal
Regulations, Section 240.10b-5 by; (a) employing devices, schemes
and artifices to defraud; (g) makiné.unt¥Ue_statements of
material fact and omittinﬁ télétaﬁe material facts necessary in
order to make the statements mgde, in the light of the
circumstances under which they weré made, not misleading; and (c¢)
engaging in acts, éractices énd courses of business4Which
operated and would operate as a fraud and deceit upon persons,
all in violation of Title 15, United Sﬁétes'CQde, Sections 787 (b)
o : e
and 78ff, and Title 17, Code’of'Féderal Regulétions, Section

240.10b-5.

Means and Methods
11. Some of the means by which DOUG WHITMAN, the

defendant, and his co-conépiégtofé effecéﬁaﬁed the fraudulent
scheme were as follows:

a. Karl Motey obtained Marvell Inside
Information from Marvell Inside Sources.

b. The Marvell Inside $ources provided the
Marvell Inside Information’tolﬁotéy in'ﬁiolation of their duties

bt ot

of trust and confidence. SRR ol



c. Motey'communiéated the Marvell Inside
Information to WHITMAN, whb'éxécﬁted secgfiﬁiés transactions on
the basis of the information.

Overt Acts
12. In furtheraﬁcé of the conspiracy and to effect the
illegal object thereof, DOUG WHITMAN, the defendant, and his co-
conspirators committed the foliowiﬁg overtzaéts, among others, in
the Southern District of New Yérkjénd elée@hére:

a. In or about May 2008, WHITMAN, using a prime
brokerage firm located in New York,.New York, caused the sale of
call option contracts for‘Marvéllgstoék Qn %n'exchange located in
New York, New York. ” |

b. In'or about October 2008,uWHITMAN, using a
prime brokerage firmilocated'in NeQ York, New York, caused the
sale of Marvell stock;j'* i

c. On or about November 3, ‘2008, WHITMAN, using
a prime brokerage fiirm 1oca£ed iniﬁew Yérk;‘ﬁéW'Yoik, caused the
sale of call option contracts for Mérvéll‘étgék on an exchange
located in New York, New York.

d. In or about January 2009, WHITMAN, using a
prime brokerage firm 1ocated“iﬁ'Néthoer-Néw,York, cauéed the
sale of call option contracﬁslfor Marvell stogk.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.)
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COUNT TWO
(Conspiracy to Commit Securities Fraud)
The Grand Jury further charges:
13. The éllegations-coptained.in paragraphs 1 and 2
are repeated and realleged aé though fuliylsgﬁ forth herein.
14. At all times relevant to this Indictment, Roomy
Khan (“Khan”) worked in the hedgé fund industry.

The Insider Trading Scheme

15. From at least in or about 2006 through in or about
2007, DOUG WHITMAN, the defenqant;-Roomy Khan, and others known
and unknown, participated in aischéﬁe to defraud by disclosing
Inside Information and/or executing securities transactions based
on Inside Information pertaining tq publicly traded companies,
including Polycom, Inc. (“Polycom?)'and'google, Inc. (“Google”).

16. Mofe specifically, 'Roomy kﬁanzébtained earnings
and/or other material financial and;buSiness‘information relating
to Polycom (“Polycdm>Inside Information”) from an individual not
named as a defendant hérein (“Polycom Inside Source”) who worked
as an emplﬁyee at Polycom, a public. company that trades on the
Nasdag Stock Market.: : o

17. The Polycom Inéidégséurce disclosed the Polycom
Inside Information to Khan in violation of his duties of trust

and confidence that he owed to Polycom and Polycom shareholders

H
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and for personal benefit.

| 18. After obtaining the Polycom Inside Information
from the Polycom Inside Source, Khan ppgvided the Polycom Inside
Information to DOUG WHITMAN,; the defendant, and others. WHITMAN
knew that the Polycom Inside Inqumation that Khan provided to
him was obtained in violation of duties of trust and confidence
that the Polycom Inside Source'owgd.to-Polyqom and Polycom
shareholders.

19. After receiving tﬁe Polycom Inside Information
from Khan, DOUG WHITMAN, thg defendant, caused securities
transactions to be'ekecuted‘ﬁased, at least‘in part, on the
Polycom Inside Information.

20. In addition, Roomy Khan:talso obtained earnings
and/or other material fiﬁancial'aﬁa‘business'ihformation relating
to Google (“Google Inside Info?maﬁion”) ffém‘an individual not
named as a defendant herein (“Google Inside Source”) who worked
as an employee at a‘firm who cbntrécted to provide investor
relations services to Google, a public company that trades on the
Nasdag Stock Market. The Google Inside Source disclosed the
Google Inside Information to Khan in violation of her duties of
trust and confidenéezand"for5per90nal benefit.

21. After obtaining the Google Inside Information from

the Google Inside Source, Khan provided the Google Inside
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Information to DOUG WHITMAN, the dgfendant, and others. WHITMAN
knew that the Google Inside Information tﬁat'Khan provided to him
was obtained in violation of:dutigs of trugt‘and confidence.

22. After recgiving.the;QOog;e Inside Information from
Khan, - DOUG WHITMAN, the deﬁendant,'caused gsecurities transactions
to be executed based, at least in part, on the Google Inside
Information.

23. By causing securities transactions to be executed
based on the Polycom Inside Infprﬁation and the Google Inside
Information, DOUG WHITMAN, thé defendant, earned illegal profits
of more than $900,000. Furthermore; in exchange for the Polycom
Inside Information and the GooglegInsideﬂlnformation provided by
Khan, DOUG WHITMAN, the deféndant; provided Khan with information
about publicly traded technology companies.

The Conspiracy

24. From at' least in or about 2006 through in or about
2007, in the Southern District of New York and elsewhere, DOUG
WHITMAN, the defendant, and others' known and unknown, willfully
and knowingly, did combine, conspire, confederate and agree
together and with each other to commit offenses against the
United States, to wit, securitieS‘fraud, in violation of Title
15, United States Code, Seéctions 783 (b) & 78ff, and Title 17,

Code of Federal Regulations, Section 240.10b-5.



25. It was a part and objecﬁiof the conspiracy that
DOUG WHITMAN, the defendaﬁt,'énd'oﬁhers'knOWnland unknown,
willfully and knowingly, directly and indifectly, by the use of
the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, and of
the mails, and of facilities of national securities exchanges,
would and did use and employjain connection with the purchase and
sale of securities, manipulative and éeceptivé devices and
contrivances in violation of Title 17, Code of Federal
Regulations, Section 240.10b-5 by: (a) employing devices, schemes
"and artifices to defraud; (b) making untrue statements of
material fact and omitting to state material facts necessary in
order to make the statemeﬁtsuﬁadé) in tﬁe'ligh£ of the
circumstances under which they &ére made, ﬁot misleading; and (c)
engaging in acts, practices and courses of business which
operated and would operate as a fiaudAand deceit upon persons,
all in violation of Titlé~155LUniEed Staéés*bdde, Sections 787 (b)
and 78ff, and Title 17, Code éf"Féderal Reéﬁlétions, Section
240.10b-5. - e

Means and Methods

26. Some of the means by which DOUG WHITMAN, the

defendant, and his co-conspirators effedtuated the fraudulent

- . . : ,“'- \
scheme were as follows: e R
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a. .Roomy Khanlo?tained Pol?com Inside
Information and Google Inside.Information from the Polycom inside
Source and the Google Inéiée Source, fespectively.

b. The Polycom InsidezSourde and the Google
Inside Source provided the-Insideilnformatioﬁ.to Khan in
violation of duties of trust and confidence and for personal
benefit.

c. Khan communicated the Iﬁside Information to
WHITMAN, who executed securities transac;ionsion the basis of the
Inside Information.

Overt: Acts v
27. In fufthe?éqcé of the'conspifacy and to effect the
illegal object thereof, DOUG WHITMAN, the defendant, and his co-
conspirators committed the following'ovgrt acts, among others, in
the Southern District of New"fgrk;and elsewhe:é:

a. | On or abouthanuary 11& 2006, WHITMAN, from
New York, New York, spoke over the telephone with Khan.

b. on or about January 12, 2006, WHITMAN caused
the purchase of approximately 32,100 shares of Polycom stock
using a prime brokerage firm 1ocated in New York, New York.

c. on or abdut :July 19, 2007, using a prime

brokerage firm 1océtéd ianéW York, New York, WHITMAN caused the

purchase of put option contracts in Google on an exchange located

Y
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in New York, New York.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.)

COUNTS THREE AND FOUR
(Securities .Fraﬁd")““' -

The Grand Jury further éharges:

28. The allegatioﬁs‘céﬁtéined in paragraphs 1 and 2,
and paragraphs 14 thfough éB_are repeated and realleged as though
fully set forth herein. a

29. On or about the dates set forth below, in the
Southern District of New York.ahd elsewﬁere; DOﬂG WHITMAN; the
defendant, willfully and knowingly, directly and indirectly, by

use of the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce,

[ .
the mails and the facilities of nhtiohal securities exchanges, in
o "

connection with the purchéseﬁan&:sale dfméecﬁfities, did use and

employ manipulative and'deceptiQe devices éndacontrivances, in
violation bf Title 17, Cdde éf Fédéral ﬁegulétions, Section
240.10b—5, by (a) emﬁlcyiné devices, schemes and artifices to
defraud; (b) making untrue statements éf material facts and
omitting to state material facts heéessary‘in-order to ﬁake the
statements made, in the light gf the circumstéﬁces under which
they were made, not misleading; and (c) engaging in acts,
practices and courses of business Which operated and would

operate as a fraud and deceit upoh persons, - to wit, WHITMAN

o
! t
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executed transactions in the securities of the companies

indicated beiow based on Inside Information.

COUNT DATE N COMPANY

THREE | From on or about | Polycom, Inc.
January 12,

2006, to on or
about January

25, 2007 ' ‘
FOUR On or about. . | Google, Inc.
July 19, 2007 . [ & ‘

(Title 15, United States Code, Sections 78j(b) & 78ff;
Title 17, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 240.10b-5; and
Title 18, United ‘States Code, Section 2.)

fORFﬁITURE ALLEGATIONV

30. As'a result of committing one or more of the
foregoing securities fraudﬁéﬁfénsgs aliégeﬁlﬁhkCounts One through
Four of this Indictment, DOUG‘ﬁﬁI%MAﬁ, thézdéééndant, shall
forfeit to the United States pursuant to Title 18, United States
Code, Section 981(a) (1) (¢) and Tit%e 28, United States Code,
Section 2461, all property, %gal,;na:perédnal, that constitutes
or is derived from procéeds'éraéeabie to'Ehs éommission of the
securities fraud offenses, includipgvbut not limited to a sum of

money in United States currency which was derived from proceeds

traceable to the commissioh‘éf the securitieées fraud offenses.

Substitute Assets Provision

31. If any of the @bove-described forfeitable

12



property, as a result of any act or omission of the defendant:

a. cannot be located upon the exercisé of due
diligence;

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited

with, a third party;

c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of
the court;

d. has been substantially diminished in value;
or

e. has been commingled with other property which

~ cannot be divided without difficulty;
it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21,
United States Code, Section 853 (p), to seek forfeiture of any
other property of the defendant up to the value of the
forfeitable property described above.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 981;

Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461;

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 371 and 2;

Title 15, United States Code, Sections 78j(b) and 78ff;
and Title 17, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 240.10b-5.)

g Pk Bhonare

Foreperson PREET BHARARA(
United States torney
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UNITED STATES QF.AMERICA
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DOUG WHITMAN,
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(Title 18, United; States Code, ‘Sections
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A

PREET BHARARA -
United States Attormgey.. -

A TRUE' BILL

. .Foreperson.






